
 

WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

John J. Tagle, Chair, Donald Edmunds, Vice Chair 
Michael W. Hutson, Edward Kempen, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica 

Gordon Schepke, Robert Schultz and Thomas Strat 
   
September 10, 2013 7:00 P.M. Council Chambers 
   

 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – August 27, 2013 Special/Study Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Current Agenda 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979 A) – Proposed Galleria of Troy 

Phase II, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently Zoned 
BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 27, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:00 p.m. on August 27, 2013 in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-08-066 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-08-067 
Moved by: Kempen 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the August 13, 2013 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 27, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
No report; there was no Zoning Board of Appeals meeting this month. 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
No report; there was no Downtown Development Authority meeting this month. 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority considered and 
approved the proposed Brownfield Redevelopment Plan #6 for 100 E. Maple Road, MJR 
Theatres Troy Grand Cinema 16. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
8. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 009) – Proposed Troy 

Marriott Hotels, West side of Stephenson Highway, North of 14 Mile (333 Stephenson 
Highway), Section 35, From O (Office) District to OM (Office Mixed Use) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a brief summary of the conditional rezoning request.  At the July 23, 
2013 Regular meeting, the applicant offered to come back to the Planning Commission 
with a site plan as a condition.  Mr. Carlisle identified the proposed conditions offered by 
the applicant and addressed the preliminary site plan with respect to site arrangement, 
parking, site access, landscaping, lighting and elevations.  Mr. Carlisle recommended that 
the site planning issues identified in his report, dated August 15, 2013, are addressed prior 
to a recommendation of approval by the Planning Commission. 
 
Present to represent the applicant were Victor Saroki and Jeffrey Ryntz of Victor Saroki 
and Associates, and Andy Wakeland of Giffels Webster.  Akram Namou of A&M 
Hospitality was also present. 
 
Mr. Saroki addressed the proposed mitigation of concerns voiced by the residential 
neighbors, site plan concerns identified by the Planning Consultant, potential to use 
designated loading zones for additional landscaping, hotel occupancy and staff.  Mr. 
Saroki said they did look into orienting placement of the building so that the majority of 
windows would not face the residential side, and it resulted in an awkward layout with 
the buildings being closer to the residential property line.  Mr. Saroki also addressed the 
building materials, building heights and lighting.  Color renderings of the hotels were 
displayed.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 27, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

Mr. Wakeland said Marriott Hotels would not agree to frosted windows as suggested at 
the previous meeting.  He indicated Marriott Hotels gave their approval of the site plan 
as presented this evening.  Mr. Wakeland said the applicant is happy to address the site 
planning issues identified in the Planning Consultant report.  He continued to address 
setbacks, dumpster location, tree heights, bicycle parking, lighting, hotel staff, loading 
areas and the wall as a sound barrier. 
 
Mr. Namou said he instructed the architectural and engineering team to take to heart 
the concerns of the residents.  He indicated Marriott Hotels is satisfied with the strategic 
location of the proposed hotels and has given its approval to go forward. 
 
There was discussion on: 

• Site line profile. 
• Landscaping; types, heights, growth timeline. 
• Lighting; islands. 
• Wall; sound barrier, height. 
• Loading zones; additional landscaping, landbanked parking. 
• Elevation and building facades. 
• Access drive. 
• Stormwater management. 
• Role of Planning Commission as a recommending body. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
The following residents voiced opposition to the proposed rezoning: 

Nick Penchoff, 302 Redwood 
James Stone, 314 Redwood 
Jim Kaltz, 286 Burtman 
Sally Wilsher, 350 Redwood 
Mary Jo Austin, 242 Redwood 
Mike Landreth, 218 Redwood 
Matt Morrison, 182 Redwood 
Cynthia Wilsher, 369 E Maple 
Randall Kriebel, 277 Redwood 
Speaker did not sign in, stated address as 254 Redwood 
Tom Norton, 1331 Key West (signed in at that address, City records show address as 

1332 Key West, submitted photographs)  
Bill Ring, 362 Redwood 
Joan Devera, 157 Redwood 

 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
The Board thanked residents for attending the meeting to voice their concerns. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 27, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

Resolution # PC-2013-08-068 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item to the October 8, 2013 Regular meeting to provide 
the applicant an opportunity to address issues identified in the Planning Consultant 
reported dated August 15, 2013. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Chair Tagle called for a break at 8:59 p.m.  The meeting reconvened at 9:06 p.m. 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 
9. POTENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) – Proposed Mixed Use PUD 

Project, Northeast corner of Crooks Road and I-75 (5498-5500 Crooks), Section 9, 
Currently Zoned OM (Office Mixed Use) District 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced the team members of the proposed development project. 
 
Present were Remo Polselli, CEO of New California Hotel Corporation, and project 
architect, Jason Krieger of Krieger Klatt Architects.  Collectively they introduced the 
proposed redevelopment plans for the Met Hotel.  The plans include a 35,000 square 
foot retail center facing the property, a 500 seat amphitheater in the hotel courtyard and 
a fine dining restaurant at the former Charley’s Crab restaurant location. 
 
Members of the Planning Commission expressed their enthusiasm for the proposed 
development. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 

There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 27, 2013 
  
 
 

5 
 

 
The Special/Study meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:47 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John J. Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Draft\2013 08 27 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



  PC 2013.09.10 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

 
 
DATE: September 6, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979 A) – Proposed Galleria 

 of Troy Phase II, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, 
 Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
 
The petitioner Galleria of Troy LLC submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval application for two hotels.  This application comprises Phase II of the buildout plan for 
this site.  Phase I, which is under construction, included two restaurants and a retail building 
along the Big Beaver frontage.   
 
The property is currently zoned BB (Big Beaver) District.  The Planning Commission is 
responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan Approval for this item.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and the recommendations included therein.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 979 A Galleria of Troy LLC  Sec 21\SP-979A PC Memo 09 10 13.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979 A) – Proposed Galleria of Troy 
Phase II, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently Zoned 
BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-09- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the Proposed Galleria of Troy Phase 
II, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently Zoned BB 
(Big Beaver) District, be postponed, for the following reason: 
 

1.  Provide the applicant an opportunity to address the issues identified in the Report 
and mentioned by the Planning Commission. 

 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 979 A Galleria of Troy LLC  Sec 21\Proposed Resolution SP 979A 09 10 2013.doc 



GALLERIA OF TROY PHASE II

1: 1,892

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1580315 315Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

8/22/2013

Legend:



GALLERIA OF TROY PHASE II

1: 2,523

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2100420 420Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

8/22/2013

Legend:
Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 
 
       
  September 4, 2013 

 

Preliminary Site Plan Review  
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Group 10 Management 
 
Project Name: Galleria of Troy – Phase II 
 
Plan Date: August 21, 2013 
 
Location:  Northeast corner of Big Beaver Road and Wilshire  
 
Zoning: BB, Big Beaver Form-Based District 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Approval  
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
We received a site plan and accompanying documents for phase II of a proposed commercial 
development at the lot located at the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Wilshire/Troy Plaza Drive.   
Phase I included two restaurants (Carrabbas Italian Grill and Bonefish Grill), and a retail building.  
 
Phase II of the development is located behind Phase I and adjacent to Wilshire Drive.  The applicant is 
proposing a 122-room, 4-story Hampton Inn and a 114-room, 5-story Hilton Garden Inn.  The Hampton 
Inn is set adjacent to Wilshire and the Hampton Garden Inn is set back into the site adjacent to I-75.    
 
The property is zoned Big Beaver Form-Based District.  The proposed development and mix of uses are 
by-right and only require Site Plan Review approval from the Planning Commission.   
 
 



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

2 

Size of Subject Property:  
The property is 3.488 acres for Phase II.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
Northeast corner of Big Beaver Road and Wilshire Drive 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
Two Hotels  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Vacant 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned Big Beaver Form Based Code 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PHASE I 

PHASE II 



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

3 

 
 
Direction Zoning Use 
North  BB, Big Beaver Form Based Commercial  
South BB, Big Beaver Form Based Commercial  
East I-75 I-75 
West BB, Big Beaver Form Based Commercial 
 
MASTER PLAN 
 
The site was identified in the Big Beaver Corridor Study as one of five Corridor “Gateway” locations.  The 
plan calls for:  

• Building from lot line to lot line along the right-of-way rather than continuing to be a collection 
of isolated towers.     

• Incorporation of multiple level buildings which includes vertically integrated mixed-use 
commercial, office and residential towers.   

• The use of prominent ground floor retail, restaurants and cafes allows visual interest and activity 
for visitors and residents.       

• Contain parking in structures that are shared by surrounding developments.   
• Parking in rear and not visible from major throughfares.  
• Buildings set close to the street. 

 
Because of its high visibility and prominence, a key to site integration and cohesiveness is a consistent 
building design pattern as well as the treatment and interaction between the hotels and Phase I 
buildings.  Listed below are site plan issues that the applicant should address to better meet the vision 
and intent of the Master Plan.  
 
Items to be Addressed: Address site plan issues to ensure development is consistent with Master Plan.     
 
SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 
The applicant has oriented both hotels parallel to Wilshire Drive and I-75.  The Hampton Inn is set 
adjacent to Wilshire and the Hampton Garden Inn is set back into the site adjacent to I-75.    
 
As we noted in the review of the Phase I of this development, and indicated by the Planning Commission 
and reiterated in the Big Beaver Corridor Study, the 2008 Troy Master Plan, the Big Beaver Design 
Guidelines, and the Big Beaver Form-Based District zoning requirements, the City has high standards for 
development on Big Beaver.    Though these hotels will be over 500-feet from Big Beaver, they will have 
a strong visible presence.  Through creative site planning there is an opportunity to construct a signature 
development on this site.   We drafted a memo to the applicant in March outlining initial 
recommendations regarding the future layout of this phase in relation to Phase I.  Our 
recommendations included:  

• Orient one hotel parallel to Big Beaver to create a backdrop and visual element for the Phase I 
buildings. 

• The Hilton Garden Inn incorporates greater architectural details. Due to higher visibility from Big 
Beaver and Wilshire Drive place the Hilton Garden Inn along Wilshire Drive and move the 
Hampton Inn to the rear of the site. 

Phase 1: Commercial  



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

4 

• Move buildings to closer Wilshire Drive to create a presence along Wilshire Drive. 
• Incorporate ground floor retail uses into the hotels. 
• Create a distinctive entrance off Wilshire Drive.   
• Reconfigure boulevard breaks on Wilshire Drive if necessary to allow for better site access and 

circulation.   
• Incorporate common open space or plaza area between hotels.    
• Incorporate pedestrian connections throughout site. 
• Consolidate and share onsite parking. 

 
While reviewing Phase I, the Planning Commission requested consideration of moving the hotel portion 
of the development closer to Big Beaver.   The applicant should address if this was considered and if so, 
why it is not achievable.   
 
Overall we find that the applicant has addressed some of our recommendations, including moving the 
Hampton Inn closer to Wilshire Drive and greater pedestrian connections.  However, there are 
additional site alternatives that should be considered to create a more unified site.    
 
Items to be Addressed:  Respond to site alternatives 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
 
Table 5.03.B.4 establishes the dimensional requirements for the building form D: 
 

  
Required / 
Allowed  

Provided 
Compliance 

Front (Wilshire Drive) 10 foot build-to-line. 
75% of the building 
façade must meet the 
required building line, 
while up to 25% of the 
façade can be set back 
to allow for 
architectural 
consideration. 
 
 

Minimum: 10 feet 
Maximum: 42 feet  

Not-Compliant. The 
Planning Commission may 
adjust the required 
building line to a 
maximum of 30-feet 
beyond the property line 
for projects incorporating 
a permanent space for an 
outdoor café, public 
space, or a cross access 
drive with an adjacent 
parcel.   
 
 

Rear 40 foot minimum + 40 feet Complies 

Side  0 foot 12 feet Complies 



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

5 

 
The Hampton Inn is not placed parallel to Wilshire Drive, hence the skewed setback from 10-feet in one 
corner to 42-feet to the other.  The 42-feet setback at the northwest corner of the building does not 
comply with the Big Beaver Road build-to-line.   The Planning Commission may adjust the required build-
to-line to a maximum of 30-feet beyond the front property line for projects incorporating a permanent 
space for an outdoor café and public space.  At a minimum the applicant must move the building to 
within 30-feet of Wilshire Drive.  The site plan shows a patio/expanded sidewalk in front of the Hampton 
Inn along Wilshire Drive.  This area appears to lack the pedestrian amenities (benches, pedestrian 
lighting, landscaping) to make it an engaging and inviting space.   The applicant should provide 
additional details for this area.    
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Move Hampton Inn within 30-feet of Wilshire Drive and add permanent space 
for an outdoor café and public space to the satisfaction of the Planning Commission; and 2). Provide 
open space calculation for Phase II.  
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Vehicular –  
 
Primary site access will be shared with the Phase I access on Wilshire Drive.  Secondary access is 
proposed off the existing Magna private drive.  The applicant will need to confirm that Magna has 
permitted access to share this drive.  If Magna has agreed to share the private road, access at this 
location will be reviewed by the City’s Traffic Consultant.   If Magna does not agree, the applicant will 
need to provide an additional access point of Wilshire Drive.  
 
Pedestrian –  
 
The applicant proposes to install a 5-foot wide sidewalk on Wilshire Drive.  If access is provided off the 
Magna private drive, the applicant shall also install a 5-foot wide walk along the private drive.   Internally 
the applicant has continued the “Pedestrian Spine” from Phase I through Phase II.    The applicant should 
install a pedestrian crossing connection from the sidewalk that runs in front of the Hampton Inn to the 
Pedestrian Spine both north and south of the hotel’s drop-off area.   
 
Items to be Addressed:    1). Provide written documentation regarding Magna’s approval of sharing of 
private drive; 2) If Magna has agreed to share its private road, make any access changes based on the 
review of the City’s Traffic Consultant. If access is provided off the Magna private drive, the applicant 
shall install a 5-foot wide walk along the private drive.  If Magna does not agree, the applicant will need 
to provide an additional access point of Wilshire Drive; and 3). Install a pedestrian crossing connection 

Open Space 15 percent Phase II 
Calculation not 
provided 

Information not provided 

Lot Coverage by 
Buildings 

30 percent 27 % (Phase II) Complies  

Building Height Minimum: 35 feet 
Maximum: 66 feet 

Hampton: 51 feet 
Hilton: 60 feet 

Complies 

Parking 
Wilshire Drive: Not 
located in front yard 
and screened 

Parking is not 
located in front 
yard 

Complies  



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

6 

from the sidewalk that runs in front of the Hampton Inn to the Pedestrian Spine both north and south of 
the hotel’s drop-off area.   
  
PARKING 
 
Section 13.06.G of the Zoning Ordinance requires:  
 
 Required Provided 
Hotel: 
One (1) space for each room, 
plus one (1) space per one (1) 
employee on the largest typical 
shift 
 

236 Rooms + 18 total employees = 
254 spaces 
 
 
 
 

254 spaces  

Any additional spaces required 
for dining establishments 

0 

Total 254 spaces 

   
Barrier Free 7 9 
Bicycle Parking 4 4 
Loading 0 0 
Total 254 automobile + 2 bicycle 254 spaces + 4 bicycle 
 
Applicant shall confirm that the hotels do not include restaurants or other uses that would draw non-
hotel patrons.  If the hotels do not include restaurants, parking is sufficient.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  Confirm that the hotels do not include restaurants or other uses that would 
draw non-hotel patrons. 
 
FLOOR PLAN AND ELEVATIONS 
 
The applicant has submitted floor plans and elevations for both hotels.   
 
Hampton Inn: 

• Materials details are not provided. 
• The building does not meet ground story activation requirements for the rear/north elevation.   
• The rear/north and side/west elevation are visible from Big Beaver and thus present an 

opportunity to provide a distinguishing architectural presence.  Additional architectural details 
and features should be provided along these elevations.    

• Provide additional details regarding patio/sidewalk along Wilshire Drive. 
• It appears that this patio area is to be assessable from the first floor pool; however elevations do 

not indicate this.  
 
Hilton Garden:  

• Additional material details need to be provided.  



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

7 

• Rear/north and side/west elevation are visible from Big Beaver and thus present an opportunity 
to provide a distinguishing architectural presence.  Additional architectural details and features 
should be provided along these elevations.    

 
Design Consistency:  
 
Though free-standing buildings, there is an opportunity to provide a consistent design pattern for both 
hotel buildings as well as Phase I buildings.   The applicant should indicate the use of materials and 
design features that provide design consistency.  The applicant should provide a color rendering to 
ensure design interest and consistency.   
  
Design Examples of Hilton Garden Inn and Hampton Inn that should be considered by Applicant:  
 
The provided building design and material use appear to be the standard Hilton Garden Inn and 
Hampton Inn elevations.  The Big Beaver Design Guidelines state that all buildings on Big Beaver should 
be “unique and attractive structures built of high-quality materials and should avoid being “branded” so 
as to allow for their adaptation to future tenants.”  
 
Below are design examples of other Hilton Garden Inn and Hampton Inns that show greater ground 
story fenestration and other unique architectural features:  
 
 

 
 



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

8 

 
 
 

 
   



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

9 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

10 

 
 
 
Items to be Addressed:  Address architectural comments for each building 
 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
The applicant has provided a landscape plan.  The plan provides all necessary calculations regarding 
greenbelt, street trees, and parking lot landscaping requirements.   
 

 Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Street Trees: The Ordinance requires that 
the greenbelt shall be landscaped with a 
minimum of one (1) deciduous tree for 
every thirty (30) lineal feet, or fraction 
thereof, of frontage abutting a public road 
right-of-way.   

Wilshire Drive: 
15 

15 Compliant  
 

Site landscaping: A minimum of twenty 
percent (20%) of the site area shall be 
comprised of landscape material. 

20% Exceeds 20% Compliant 

Parking Lot Landscaping:  1 tree for every 
8 parking spaces.  Trees may be located 
adjacent to parking lot with planning 
commission approval.   

31 trees  31 trees Compliant 

 
  
Trash Enclosure: 
 
The trash enclosure for the Hampton Inn is located along Wilshire Drive.  The applicant should move the 
trash enclosure so that is adjacent to the building to provide better screening from Wilshire Drive.  
Relocating trash enclosure may require slight reconfiguration of the parking lot.   
 
The trash enclosure for the Hilton Garden Inn is located adjacent the south side of the building.  The 



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

11 

applicant should switch the location to then north side of the building, so that the building would screen 
dumpster area from Big Beaver Road and the Phase I parking lot.    
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Relocate Hampton Inn trash enclosure adjacent to the building to provide 
better screening from Wilshire Drive; and 2). Relocate Hilton Garden Inn trash enclosure to the north side 
of the building. 
  
LIGHTING 
 
The proposed site lighting consists of twenty-two (22) pole mounted lights.   The Hampton Inn includes 
thirty (30) building and canopy lights.  The Hilton Garden Inn includes forty-seven (47) building and 
canopy lights.   In addition the site includes twenty-one ground lights that illuminate pedestrian areas.  
The pole mounted lights are night time sky compliant. The applicant shall confirm that the building lights 
are fully shielded.   The photometrics comply with ordinance requirements.    
 
Items to be Addressed: Confirm that all building lights are fully shielded.   
 
 
DESIGN STANDARDS 
 
The Big Beaver design standards provide the Planning Commission with direction when reviewing the 
proposed design features of this development.  
 
Façade Variation.  
 
The maximum linear length of an uninterrupted building façade facing public streets and/or parks shall 
be thirty (30) feet.  Through the use of material changes, projections, façade articulation and 
fenestration, the all buildings comply with this standard.    
 

a. Primary Entrance:  The primary building entrance shall be clearly identifiable and useable and 
located in the front façade parallel to the street.  A primary entrance for the Hampton Inn does 
not front of Wilshire Drive.  An enhanced entrance must be provided either on the rear/north 
elevation or the side/west elevation.    

Pedestrian Access / Entrance. 

 
b. Pedestrian Connection. The pedestrian connection shall be fully paved and maintained surface 

not less than five (5) feet in width.  Provided the applicant addresses the pedestrian 
connections noted above, this requirement is met.  

 
c. Additional Entrances. In addition to the primary façade facing front façade and/or the right-of-

way, if a parking area is located in the rear or side yard, must also have a direct pedestrian 
access to the parking area that is of a level of materials quality and design emphasis at least 
equal to that of the primary entrance.   An enhanced entrance must be provided either on the 
rear/north elevation or the side/west elevation.    

 
 
 
 



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

12 

 
Ground Story Activation. 

The first floor of any front façade facing a right-of-way shall be no less than fifty (50) percent windows 
and doors, and the minimum transparency for facades facing a side street, side yard, or parking area 
shall be no less than 30 percent of the façade.  Transparency alternatives are permitted up to 80% of the 
50% total along the front of buildings, and up to 100% of the sides of buildings.  The minimum 
transparency requirement shall apply to all sides of a building that abut an open space, including a side 
yard, or public right-of-way.  Transparency requirements shall not apply to sides which abut an alley.   
 
It appears that the south/rear elevation of the Hampton Inn does not meet this requirement.  The 
applicant shall provide the necessary calculation to confirm if the ground story activation requirement 
is met.  
 
In addition, the rear/north and side/west elevation are visible from Big Beaver and thus present an 
opportunity to provide a distinguishing architectural presence.  Additional architectural details and 
features should be provided along these elevations.    
 
Transitional Features 
 

a. Transitional features are architectural elements, site features, or alterations to building massing 
that are used to provide a transition between higher intensity uses and low- or moderate-density 
residential areas.  These features assist in mitigating potential conflicts between those uses.  
Transitional features are intended to be used in combination with landscape buffers or large 
setbacks. 

 
Due to proximity of other commercial uses, the commercial development is not a more intense 
use which would require transitional features.   

 
Site Access and Parking 
 

a. Required Parking.  Off-street parking shall be provided in accordance with the standards set 
forth in Article 13, Site Design Standards.   The applicant is providing the permitted parking.    
  

b. Location. 
I. When parking is located in a side yard (behind the front building line) but  fronts on the 

required building line, no more than fifty (50) percent of the  total site’s linear feet along 
the required building line or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall be occupied 
by parking.   Not Applicable  
 

II. For a corner lot, shall be no more than fifty (50) percent of the site’s cumulative linear 
feet along the required building lines or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall 
be occupied by parking.  The building shall be located in the corner of the lot adjacent to 
the intersection. The requirement is met   

 
III. For a double frontage lot or a lot that has frontage on three (3) streets, the  cumulative 

total of all frontages occupied by parking shall be no more  than sixty-five (65) percent of 
the total site’s linear feet along a required  building line or one hundred and twenty-five 
(125) feet, whichever is less. Not Applicable  



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

13 

 
IV. Where off-street parking is visible from a street, it should be screened in accordance with 

the standards set forth in Section 13.02.C.  The applicant has screened their parking lot 
in compliance with section 13.0.2.C.   

  
Items to be Addressed: 1). Provide a primary entrance for the Hampton Inn along Wilshire Drive; 2). 
Include greater transparency along rear/south elevation of Hampton Inn; and 3). Add  additional 
architectural details and features along the south/rear and side/west elevations for both buildings.    
 
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
 
Overall we support the conceptual development of this site; however we find there are specific site 
planning issues and architectural details that need to be addressed to the satisfaction of the Planning 
Commission.   These include:  

• Site Planning Considerations:  
o Orient one hotel parallel to Big Beaver to create a backdrop and visual element for the 

Phase I buildings. 
o The Hilton Garden Inn incorporates greater architectural details. Due to higher visibility 

from Big Beaver and Wilshire Drive consider placing Hilton Garden Inn along Wilshire 
Drive and moving the Hampton Inn to the rear of the site.   

o Incorporate ground floor retail uses into the hotels. 
o Create a distinctive entrance off Wilshire Drive.   
o Reconfigure boulevard breaks on Wilshire Drive if necessary to allow for better site 

access and circulation.   
o Incorporate common open space or plaza area between hotels.    
o Provide a primary entrance to Hampton Inn either on the rear/north elevation or the 

side/west elevation. 
• Architectural Considerations:  

o Materials details are not provided. 
o Hampton Inn building does not meet ground story activation requirements for the 

rear/north elevation.   
o Provide additional details regarding patio/sidewalk along Wilshire Drive. 
o It appears that this patio area along Wilshire is to be assessable from the Hampton Inn 

first floor pool; however elevations do not indicate this.  
o Provide a color rendering to ensure design interest and consistency.   
o The rear/north and side/west elevation are visible from Big Beaver and thus present an 

opportunity to provide a distinguishing architectural presence.  Additional architectural 
details and features should be provided along these elevations.    

o Relocate Hampton Inn trash enclosure adjacent to the building to provide better 
screening from Wilshire Drive. 

o Relocate Hilton Garden Inn trash enclosure to the north side of the building. 
 
In addition, access needs to be confirmed.  The applicant needs to provide written documentation 
regarding Magna’s approval of sharing of private drive.  If Magna has agreed to share its private road, 
make any access changes based on the review of the City’s Traffic Consultant. If access is provided off 
the Magna private drive, the applicant shall install a 5-foot wide walk along the private drive.  If Magna 
does not agree, the applicant will need to provide an additional access point off Wilshire Drive.   



Galleria of Troy 
September 4, 2013 

14 

 
 



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

COVER

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

H
E

E
T

SCALE: NONE





AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-1.0

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
I
C

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

SCALE: 1" = 40'



Retail "A"

AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-2.0

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 50'



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-3.1

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
S

O
U

T
H

SCALE: 1" = 20'



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-3.2

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
N

O
R

T
H

SCALE: 1" = 20'



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-4.1

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
S

O
U

T
H

SCALE: 1" = 20'



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-4.2

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
N

O
R

T
H

SCALE: 1" = 20'



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-5.0

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
U

T
I
L

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 40'



AUG. 19, 2013

ORIGINAL

ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY

ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE

NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN

WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING

INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF

COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY

SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-070

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 
1
/
4
 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
1
,
 
T

.
 
2
N

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
E

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

G
R

O
U

P
 
1

0
 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

3
0
5
0
0
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
#
5
2
5

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L
L
S

,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

,
 
4
8
3
3
4

D
A

T
E

C
H

K
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

P
B

D
N

.
P

B
S

U
R

.
K

T
R

P
.
M

.
J
P

B

T
H

E
 
G

A
L

L
E

R
I
A

 
O

F
 
T

R
O

Y
 
-
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
I
I

N
o
.

B
Y

www.missdig.net

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090

Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING

ASSOCIATES

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

P-6.1

N
O

T
E

S
 
A

N
D

 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S

SCALE: NONE




























	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	August 27, 2013 Special/Study Meeting

	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979 A)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan

	6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS



